Guide to the Waterman family Papers

MS 793



compiled by Marguerite S. Witkop and Susan Grigg

April 1983

Yale University Library
P.O. Box 208240
New Haven, CT 06520-8240
(203) 432-1735
(203) 432-7441
beinecke.library@yale.edu
http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	. 3
Administrative Information	. 4
Immediate Source of Acquisition	4
Conditions Governing Access	. 4
Conditions Governing Use	. 4
Preferred Citation	4
Biographical / Historical	. 4
Scope and Contents	. 6
Select Correspondence of Elijah Waterman	. 7
Arrangement	. 8
Collection Contents	. 9
Inventory, (1757-1911)-1949	. 9
Accession 1993-M-054: Additional Material, 1787-1984, undated	
Selected Search Terms	

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY: Manuscripts and Archives

Yale University Library

P.O. Box 208240

New Haven, CT 06520-8240

(203) 432-1735 (203) 432-7441

beinecke.library@yale.edu

http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/

CALL NUMBER: MS 793

CREATOR: Waterman family

TITLE: Waterman family papers

DATES: 1757-1954

BULK DATES: 1757-1911

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 5.75 linear feet (13 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

SUMMARY: The papers represent four generations of the Nehemiah Waterman family

of Norwich, Connecticut. The principal figures are Elijah Waterman and his son Thomas Tileston Waterman, both Congregational ministers. The papers of Elijah Waterman consist of correspondence with other ministers, approximately 125 sermons, and histories of Woodstock, Pomfret, Lebanon and Hampton, Connecticut. The papers of Thomas Tileston Waterman also contain professional correspondence, sermons and religious publications. His wife, Delia Storrs Waterman's journals for the years ca.1848-1880, as well as essays, poetry and financial papers are included. There is also a series a scrapbooks kept by their son, Thomas Storrs Waterman with clippings and notes on politics, religion and history. General family correspondence, chiefly for the period 1795-1876, genealogical papers, photographs, financial documents, printed matter and memorabilia complete the collection.

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: https://

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ms.0793

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use in the Manuscripts and Archives reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ms.0793.

To order reproductions from this collection, please go to http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/ ifr copy order.html. The information you will need to submit an order includes: the collection call number, collection title, series or accession number, box number, and folder number or name.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

Gift of Mrs. Howard F. Reed, 1977 and 1981; and Fay C. Kaynor, 1990 and 1994.

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research.

Conditions Governing Use

Copyright status for collection materials is unknown, though much of the material in this collection is likely in the public domain. Transmission or reproduction of materials protected by U.S. Copyright Law (Title 17, U.S.C.) beyond that allowed by fair use requires the written permission of the copyright owners. Works not in the public domain cannot be commercially exploited without permission of the copyright owners. Responsibility for any use rests exclusively with the user.

Preferred Citation

Waterman Family Papers (MS 793). Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library.

Biographical / Historical

THOMAS TILESTON WATERMAN died August 2, 1873. He was the son of Rev. Elijah (Y. C. 1791) and Lucy (Abbe) Waterman, and was born in Windham, Conn., Sept. 24, 1801.

In 1805, Bridgeport, Conn., became his home. Here he was prepared for college in a private school kept by his father, with whom, after graduating, he pursued a course of theological study. He was licensed to preach by the Fairfield East Association, June 1, 1825, and was ordained pastor of what afterwards became the Richmond Street Congregational Church, in Providence, R. L, Dec. 13, 1826.

In Jan., 1837, he removed to Philadelphia, Pa., the change being made necessary by the state of his health, the result of a severe sickness. Here he remained until early in 1843, as pastor of the Fifth Presbyterian Church. Returning to Providence, he was instrumental in organizing the Fourth Congregational Church, and continued with them until the spring of 1852. He then removed to Galena, Ill., and on Dec. 15, was installed pastor of the Second Presbyterian Church. Leaving Galena early in 1856, he became acting pastor of the Congregational Church in Winona, Minn., and was active in securing the building of the house of worship upon which was raised the first spire north of Dubuque, and west of the Mississippi river.

In 1857 he returned to the East, and became pastor of the Congregational Church in Danielsonville, Conn. In 1861 he removed to Spencer, Mass., and was installed pastor of the Congregational Church there, June 5, closing his labors in Dec., 1862. In 1863, he removed to Monroe, Conn., of which place he was a resident until his death. He acted as pastor of the Congregational Church there until the latter part of 1868. During this time and afterwards, he assisted in establishing churches in Springfield, Ill., and Marshall, Mich. In the last three years of his life, he was prostrated several times by severe attacks of a chronic complaint, but continued to preach occasionally, until very near the end of life. He died in Stratford, Conn., at the residence of his daughter, which he had made an occasional and temporary home for a year or more previous.

He married, Dec. 11, 1827, Delia, daughter of Dan Storrs, of Mansfield Center, Conn. His widow, a daughter and four sons survive him. One son was graduated at this college in 1855; another at Beloit College in 1856. *Yale College Obituary Record*, 1871-1880. pp. 127-128.

ELIJAH WATERMAN, 1769-1825

ELIJAH WATERMAN, son of Nehemiah Waterman, Junior, of Bozrah, then a parish in Norwich, Connecticut, and of his wife, Susanna Isham, was born in Bozrah on November 28, 1769. He spent his early years in assisting his father on the farm, but exhibited, even in childhood, great precocity.

His preparation for College was completed under Stanley Griswold (Yale 1786) in Norwich. He came under discipline in December of his Senior year, for disobedience to the President's orders requiring him to room in College, but was restored to his rank in the Class three months later.

In May before graduation he took charge of a select school in Wethersfield, Connecticut; and in October after receiving his degree, he became the head of a similar school at Hartford, in which he continued until March, 1792.

It had been his intention, when he left College, to pursue the study of law; but during his residence in Wethersfield his mind received a religious direction, which deterimined him to enter the ministry. Accordingly, in June, 1792, he began the study of theology under the direction of the Rev. Dr. Timothy Dwight, at Greenfield Hill. He subsequently continued his studies under the Rev. Dr. Jonathan Edwards of New Haven, being at the same time a private tutor in the family of Judge Charles Chauncey.

He was licensed to preach by the New London Association of Ministers in May, 1793, and continued his studies until 1794.

In April of that year he went to preach as a candidate to the First Church and Society of Windham, Connecticut; and on June 23 a unanimous call was extended to him, offering him an annual salary of £145.

He was ordained and installed in Windham on October 1, 1794, and the sermon preached on that occasion by the Rev. Dr. James Dana, of New Haven, was afterwards published.

On November 18, 1795, he married Lucy, eldest child of Shubael Abbe (Yale 1764), of Windham.

He found his church cold, backward, and almost without influence in the community; while irreligion was rampant and aggressive throughout the parish. He devoted himself to his work with great earnestness, and soon aroused a new religious interest in the community. But his energy and zeal in opposing vice made many enemies, and after a few years so many of his congregation joined other denominations that his support became precarious. Finally, the sudden death of his wife's father, in April, 1804, removed one of the strongest pillars of the Society, and Mr. Waterman yielded to the advice of friends and sought a dismission, which was granted on February 12, 1805.

He was then employed for some time to supply the vacant pulpit in New Milford, Connecticut; and on January 1, 1806, he was installed pastor of the Congregational Church of forty-seven members in Stratfield, now Bridgeport, Connecticut. The installation sermon was preached by his friend and former neighbor, the Rev. Dr. Moses C. Welch (Yale 1772), of Mansfield, and was subsequently published.

He continued to minister to the congregation at Bridgeport with great acceptance till the close of his life, and about three hundred and sixty members were added to the church during this period.

His wife died on March 17, 1822, in her 44th year; and he was married, on December 24, 1823, to Lucy, second daughter of George and Alethea (Rowland) Wolcott, of Windsor, Connecticut, and widow of Captain Henry Talcott, of Windsor. She was born on January 31, 1780, and survived Mr. Waterman many years. He died of an inflammatory fever, while on a visit at Springfield (where his wife resided at the time of their marriage), on October 11, 1825, aged nearly 56 years.

By his first marriage he had five daughters and two sons, and by his second marriage one daughter. The eldest son was graduated at Yale in 1822, and entered the ministry.

Mr. Waterman was a preacher of considerable power, and of fervent piety. His theology was more strictly Calvinistic than that of most of the New England clergy of his day.

He was for several years during his ministry in Bridgeport a successful teacher, both of students in theology and younger pupils. His interest in local history was peculiarly active and intelligent.

[bibliography omitted]

Franklin B. Dexter, *Biographical Sketches of the Graduates of Yale College, Vol. TV, 1778-1792* (New York: Henry Holt and Company, 1907), pp. 734-737.

For a chart outlining the genealogical relations of the Waterman family, please consult the <u>Genealogical</u> Chart.

Scope and Contents

Papers of four generations of the Nehemiah Waterman family of Connecticut make up this collection. Details of the family's genealogy may be found in *The Waterman Family* by Donald Lines Jacobus. The materials are arranged by family member, followed by general family correspondence and a miscellany of items not attributable to a specific family member.

The oldest items in the collection are a daybook and a writ of Nehemiah Waterman (1736-1802). The daybook contains records of meetings, deaths and marriages in Norwich, Connecticut, between 1757 and 1789, notes about the weather, family records and similar matters, and Waterman's records as Justice of the Peace for New London County, 1788-1789.

The papers of Nehemiah's son Elijah Waterman (1769-1825) are composed primarily of correspondence and writings. His correspondence consists of letters from fellow ministers with originals and copies of Waterman's letters to ministers and to his publisher. The letters written before 1810 are mainly from a few close acquaintances, while the later correspondence includes many letters from strangers interested in Waterman's work on John Calvin. A list of select correspondents follows the folder list. Waterman's writings include several lectures and addresses, "Memoirs of the Life and Writings of John Calvin," approximately 125 sermons, and short histories of several Connecticut towns. Other papers are the sermon preached by James Dana (1735-1812) at Waterman's ordination, a small assortment of estate papers, and notes on Waterman's life by his son Thomas Tileston Waterman (1801-1873).

Thomas Tileston Waterman's papers also largely consist of professional correspondence and writings. While most of the correspondence concerns his services as minister to various parishes, there are also letters from a number of temperance and moral reform societies. Among his writings are several hundred sermons and an assortment of other religious addresses and publications, including several lectures delivered at Yale College in 1821. Thomas Tileston Waterman's papers also incorporate a notebook containing genealogical notes along with minutes of the Providence (Rhode Island) Association of the Friends of Moral Reform, a few legal and financial papers, anonymous "Recollections of the Ministry of Rev. Thomas T. Waterman with the Richmond St. Church," and printed matter dealing with religion and moral reform.

Journals for the years 1848-1880 make up the bulk of the papers of Delia (Storrs) Waterman (1806-1881), wife of Thomas Tileston Waterman. These journals contain short essays and meditations on religion and history, some household accounts, and notes about Thomas Tileston Waterman's life, as well as diary entries which narrate Delia Waterman's travels about the country with her husband to his parishes in Illinois, Minnesota, and New England, and descriptions of her life, the raising of her children, and the recurrent illnesses and the deaths of family members and friends. Other papers include Delia Waterman's record book for 1825, a short record of her correspondence for 1878-1879, an account book and other financial papers, and several short writings. Estate papers of Zalmon Storrs, Delia Waterman's brother, are also present (see Box 10, Folder 85).

Thomas and Delia Waterman's son Thomas Storrs Waterman (1828-1913) is represented by five scrapbooks filled largely with handwritten notes and sequences of newspaper clippings and other printed

matter on politics, religion, and history arranged by subject. There are also a few loose printed items and some notes by Thomas Storrs Waterman.

The Waterman family correspondence, arranged chronologically, consists mainly of letters exchanged between members of the Waterman family and of the related Southworth and Storrs families, but there are also a few professional letters of Thomas Storrs Waterman and Alfred Tileston Waterman (1832-1909). Enclosed in a letter of 1908 Mar 19 is an essay by the latter, "The Infinite in Human Education and Development."

The majority of the family letters are exchanged among Thomas Tileston Waterman, Delia (Storrs) Waterman, and their children, and describe the travels of Thomas Tileston Waterman and his sons, their careers, and their families. Of particular interest are two letters dating from the Civil War, one from Edwin Southworth Waterman (1845-1925) describing anti-draft riots in New York City (1863 Jul 18), and another from George Isham Waterman (1834-1884) while serving with the Army of the Cumberland in Georgia (1864 Jun 16). The Waterman family was deeply religious, as might be expected with three successive generations of ministers, and the letters are much concerned with questions of faith and the comforts of religion in times of bereavement.

The remaining papers in this collection include a sermon, journal fragments and other writings by unidentified Waterman family members, family financial papers, recipes, genealogical papers, seven photographs of family and friends, memorabilia such as locks of hair and pressed flowers, and an assortment of pamphlets, periodicals, newspaper clippings, and other printed matter dealing with political, moral, and religious issues, as well as with family members.

The Waterman Family Papers were donated to Yale University in two gifts by Mrs. Howard F. Reed in 1977 and 1981.

Select Correspondence of Elijah Waterman

*1794-1809

Chauncey, Charles (1777-1849; Y. 1792)1794, 1799

Dana, James (1735-1812)1794-1796

Flint, Abel (1765-1825; Y. 1785)1792-1800,1807

Lyman, William (1764-1833; Y. 1784)1806

Perkins, John D. (1769-1847; Y. 1791)1800

Swift, Zephaniah (1759-1823; Y. 1778)1794-1796

*1810-1814

Austin, David (1759 1831; Y. 1779)1813-1814

Badger, George E.(1795-1866; Y. 1813)1814

Barton, Edward1812-1814

Barton, George1812-1813

Clark, Jehu (1767-1839; Y. 1794)1814

Dodge, David Low (1774-1856)1810

Dodge, Stephen1811

Eliot, Andrew (1780-1829; Y. 1799)1814

Green, Ashbel (1762-1848)1810, 1814

Hale & Hosmer, publishers1810-1814

Huntington, Ebenezer (1754-1820; Y. 1775)1811

McClure, David (1748-1820; Y. 1769)1813-1814

Ralston, Robert (1761-1836)1810-1811

Stebbins, Josiah (1766-1829; Y. 1791)1814

Stuart, Moses (1780-1852; Y. 1799)1813-1814

Yates, Andrew (1773-1844; Y. 1794)1814

Arrangement

Arranged alphabetically by name of family member.

Collection Contents Inventory, (1757-1911)-1949

	Nehemiah Waterman	1736-1802
b. 1 , f. 1	Daybook	1757-1789
	A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at beinecke.library@yale.edu to request access to the digital copy.	
b. 1, f. 2	Writ	1773 August 3
	A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at beinecke.library@yale.edu to request access to the digital copy.	
	Elijah Waterman	1769-1825
b. 1, f. 3-15	Correspondence	1792-1814
b. 1, f. 16	Lectures	1792, 1809, undated
b. 1, f. 17-18	Sermons	1793-1810
b. 2, f. 19-22	Sermons	1811-1824, undated
b. 2, f. 23	"Memoirs of the Life and Writings of John Calvin" English	[1814?]
b. 2, f. 24	Address to the Connecticut Academy of Arts and Sciences on Gov. Trumbull; bound with printed address by Gov. Trumbull, 1783	undated
	Histories of Connecticut	
b. 2, f. 25	Woodstock, Pomfort and Lebanon	1802 February 19
b. 2, f. 26	Woodstock and Hampton	undated
b. 2, f. 27	Windham County	undated
b. 2, f. 28	James Dana: sermon preached at the ordination of E.W.	1794 October 1
b. 2, f. 29	Estate papers	1826-1827
b. 2, f. 30	Notes on E.W. by Thomas Tileston Waterman	[post 1825]
	Thomas Tileston Waterman	1801-1873
b. 3, f. 31-34	Correspondence	1829-1873
b. 3, f. 35-38	Sermons	1822-1837
b. 4, f. 39-43	Sermons	1838-1854
b. 5, f. 44-48	Sermons	1855-1868, undated

Thomas Tileston Waterman (continued)

b. 6, f. 49-51	Sermons	undated
b. 6, f. 52	Yale College lectures	1821
b. 6, f. 53	Address to the Bridgeport Missionary Society	1822 April
b. 6, f. 54	"Lectures: A Course of Questions in Divinity" English	1825 January 11
b. 6, f. 55	Religious Experiences, 5th ed. (2 copies)	1852
b. 6, f. 56	"Prohibitionary Law Constitutional, or the Decision of the United States Supreme Court on Laws Controlling the Use of Intoxicating Liquors: An Address Before the Galena City Temperance Society" (2 copies) English	1853 February 15
	Notebook	
b. 6, f. 57	Providence Association of the Friends of Moral Reform: minutes	1833-1834
b. 6, f. 57	Memoirs of the Life and Ancestry of Constant Southworth	1845 June 9
b. 6, f. 57	Notes on Southworth and Storrs ancestry	undated
b. 6, f. 58	Legal and financial papers	1827-1867, undated
b. 6, f. 59	$^{\prime\prime}\text{Recollections}$ of the Ministry of Rev. Thomas T. Waterman with the Richmond St. Church $^{\prime\prime}$ English	undated
b. 6, f. 60	Printed matter	1833-1876, undated
b. 6, f. 61	Miscellaneous	undated
	Delia (Storrs) Waterman	1806-1881
b. 7, f. 62	Record book	1825
b. 7, f. 63-73	Journals	[ca. 1848]-1880
b. 8, f. 74	Journal	undated
b. 8, f. 75	Record of correspondence	1878-1879
b. 8, f. 76	Financial papers	1856-1878
b. 8, f. 77	Essays, poetry	undated
b. 8, f. 78	"Fixed Attention", copied by D.S.W. English	1877 February 9
	Thomas Storrs Waterman	1828-1913
b. 8, f. 79-80	Scrapbook	1845-1908, 1873-1879, 1890-1901

Thomas Storrs Waterman (continued)

b. 9, f. 81-	Scrapbook	1875, 1890-1911, 1894-1906, 1899-1910
b. 9, f. 84	Miscellaneous	1835-1876, undated
	Zalmon Storrs	
b. 10, f. 85	Estate papers	1831
	Family correspondence	
b. 10, f. 86-100	1795-1876 August	1795-1876 August
b. 11, f. 103-110	1876 September-1949, undated	1876 September-1949, undated
	Miscellaneous	
b. 12, f. 111	Sermon	1834 November 27
b. 12, f. 112	Unidentified writings and notes	1791-1828, undated
b. 12, f. 113	Unidentified journal fragments	1779, 1838, 1852
b. 12, f. 114	Financial papers	1827-1880, undated
b. 12, f. 115	Recipes	undated
	Genealogical papers	
b. 12, f. 116	"Waterman and Storrs Genealogy Margaret Bridgeman" English	undated
b. 12, f. 117	Notes	undated
b. 12, f. 118	Photographs	[1862], 1866, undated
b. 12, f. 119	Memorabilia	undated
	Printed matter	
b. 12, f. 120	Re: Yale College	1845-1874
b. 12, f. 121	Pamphlets	1862-1879
b. 12, f. 122	<i>McDowall's Journal</i> English	1833
b. 12, f. 123	The Advocate of Moral Reform	1836-1837

Miscellaneous > Printed matter (continued)

b. 12, f. 124	The People's Press	1837 December 26
b. 12, f. 125-126	Newspaper clippings	[ca. 1850-1900]
b. 12, f. 127	Miscellaneous	1807-1879, undated
b. 12, f. 128	Miscellaneous	1809, 1850, undated

Accession 1993-M-054: Additional Material, 1787-1984, undated

Addition inventory by Carol King 1993 Mar, 1995 Mar

Also includes Accession 1995-M-039

Received from: Fay C. Kaynor, 1990 Jan 28, 1994 Sep 20

	Elijah Waterman	1769-1825
b. 1 , f. 1	Minute book of accounts	1802-1810
b. 1, f. 2	Notes	1813. undated
b. 1, f. 3	Sermon	1809 May 28
	Thomas Tileston Waterman	1801-1873
b. 1, f. 4	Correspondence	1817, 1828, 1834-1839, 1857
b. 1, f. 5-6	"Social Relations, Nos. I-V, Introduction, Husband, Wife, Father, Mother" English	1848, undated
b. 1, f. 7	Sermons	1852, undated
b. 1, f. 8	Will, finances	1867, 1877
	Delia (Storrs) Waterman	1806-1881
b. 1, f. 9	Correspondence	1839, 1844, 1848, 1874-1880
b. 1, f. 10	Journal of verses by others	1821-1827
b. 1, f. 11	Will, finances	1875, 1881
	Thomas Storrs Waterman	1828-1913
b. 1, f. 12	Correspondence to Leoline (daughter)	1903, 1910
b. 1, f. 13	"Special Scrapbook Reserved for Choice Thoughts and Records" English	1851-1907
b. 2, f. 14	Sermons, lectures	1908
	Lucy M. Waterman	
b. 2, f. 15	Journal	1852-1860
	Simon Waterman	
b. 2, f. 16	Sermon for the funeral of John Trumbull	1787
	Storrs family	
b. 2, f. 17	Correspondence	1790, 1796, 1800–1808, 1827, undated

Southworth family

b. 2, f. 18	Correspondence	1787, 1792-1797
b. 2, f. 19	Genealogical journals	1900, 1903, undated
b. 2, f. 20	Notes, journal fragments	Mid 1700s to 1897
b. 2, f. 20a	Photographs	1879
b. 2, f. 21	Printed material	1882, 1896, 1911, 1954, 1984, undated
b. 2, f. 22	Sermons of others	1793, 1802
b. 2, f. 22 b. 2, f. 23	Sermons of others Temperance Societies: reports	1793, 1802 1832, 1849
b. 2, f. 23	Temperance Societies: reports	1832, 1849

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Clergy Congregational churches -- Connecticut Families Spouses of clergy

Families

Waterman family

Corporate Body

Hale & Hosmer

Geographic Names

Connecticut Norwich (Conn.)

Genres / Formats

Diaries Scrapbooks Sermons

Names

Austin, David, 1759-1831 Badger, George E., 1795-1866 Barton, Edward Barton, George Chauncey, Charles, 1777-1849 Clark, Jehu, 1767-1839 Dana, James, 1735-1812 Dodge, David Low, 1774-1852 Dodge, Stephen Eliot, Andrew, 1780-1829 Flint, Abel, 1765-1825 Green, Ashbel, 1762-1848 Huntington, Ebenezer, 1754-1834 Lyman, William, 1764-1833 M'Clure, David, 1748-1820 Perkins, John D., 1769-1847 Ralston, Robert, 1761-1836 Stebbins, Josiah, 1766-1829 Stuart, Moses, 1780-1852 Swift, Zephaniah, 1759-1823 Waterman, Elijah, 1769-1825 Waterman, T. T. (Thomas Tileston), 1801-1873 Waterman, Thomas Storrs, 1828-1913 Yates, Andrew, 1773-1844